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INDICTMENT CHARGES 54 COUNTS OF FRAUD
IN OREGON ‘PHANTOM COW’ INVESTMENT SCHEME ;
GRAND JURY ALLEGES INVESTORS
LOST $100,000,000

PORTLAND, ORE.—- Si x defendants were indicted on 54 counts of
mai | fraud, bankruptcy fraud, and noney | aundering for their role in
a long-runni ng “phantom cow’ investnent schene operated in Eastern
Oregon and Sacranmento, Calif., Assistant United States Attorney Allan
Garten and United States Trustee Jan Ostrovsky announced today. The
52- page superseding indictnment, handed down June 2 by a grand jury
for the District Court of the District of Oregon, contained charges
against Walter J. (Jay) Hoyt |11, David Cross, Phyllis King, and
Darrel Smith, all of Burns, Oe., and agai nst David Barnes and April
Barnes of Herald, Calif.

Hoyt operated many interrel ated busi ness partnerships and
conmpani es. The indictnment charged that, between 1982 and the present,
t he defendants, |ed by Hoyt, conspired to defraud thousands of
i nvestors out of nore than $100 mllion. According to the indictnment,
the conspirators gave fal se prom ses and representations to obtain
investnents in a cattle breeding programand an Individual Retirenent
Account (I RA).

“This is a superseding indictnent raising new charges of
bankruptcy fraud and noney | aundering,” Assistant United States
Attorney Garten explained. “Three of the named defendants commtted
bankruptcy fraud in order to conceal significant incone and assets
fromthe United States Trustee’s office and nunerous creditors. The
i ndi ct ment charges that these defendants committed bankruptcy fraud
in order to perpetuate their fraudulent cattle schene. It further
al | eges that the defendants violated the noney | aundering statute
t hrough the use of the incone that was conceal ed fromthe creditors
and the United States Trustee’'s office.”

“This crimnal indictnent marks a significant chapter in a
| ong, sad story with at |least 3,000 victins,” United States Trustee



Jan Ostrovsky stated. “Many investors’ |ives were ruined financially
by their involvenent in the Hoyt operation. Meanwhile, the United
States Trustee's office, which serves as trustee in the pending
Chapter 11 bankruptcy case of the Hoyt entities, continues to
adm ni ster the bankruptcy estate and to search for assets that Hoyt
may have hi dden.”

The United States Trustee Programis a conponent of the Justice
Departnent that oversees the admi nistration of bankruptcy cases
nati onwi de. Ostrovsky is the United States Trustee for Regi on 18,
whi ch includes O egon, Washi ngton, Montana, |daho, and Al aska.

Cattl e Breeding Program

The defendants sold investnment interests in herds of female
breeding cattle held by partnerships, the indictnment stated. The cows
were to be of very high quality and were guaranteed to produce high
guality calves. Calf sales were supposed to generate income to cover
herd expenses. The herds were to increase in size through the
addition of mature breeding cows each year. The conspirators said the
herd woul d be sold after 15 years, the indictnment stated. |nvestnent
returns were to conme fromtax deductions and profits on the herd
sale. Defendants clained to have as many as 4,500 investors from4l
states in over 100 partnerships, according to the indictnent.

In fact, the indictment charged, the defendants’ records showed
that, while 38,000 adult fenmale breeding cows were sold to investors,
t he defendants knew that they never had nore than approximtely 5, 000
of such cows on hand. “In short,” the indictnent stated, “Defendants
sol d thousands of cows they never had and which did not exist.”

| ndi vi dual Retirenent Account Program

The indictnment stated that the defendants also sold an I RA
program based upon the purchase of ranch properties by investor
partnershi ps. Investor funds were to be used to purchase ranches and
make i nprovenments. Investors received “units” in the IRA
partnershi ps, which were supposed to represent a portion of the
combi ned equity of the ranches.

According to the indictment, the defendants prom sed to
repurchase a portion of the units for cash each year to provide
liquid returns to retired investors. Ranch val ues were supposed to
increase over tine as a result of inprovenents and appreciation.

Mort gage paynments and ot her expenses were to cone through revenues
generated fromleasing the ranches to another business the defendants
controll ed, which allegedly would use the ranch |and to graze the
cattl e breedi ng partnership herds.



The indictnment charged that, in fact, the defendants
artificially inflated ranch val ues through self-dealing between
fam |y nenbers; nmade fal se representations regardi ng ranch val ues and
avai l abl e equity; nade fal se prom ses regardi ng repurchase of the IRA
units; and nmade fal se representations regardi ng ranch property
owner shi p.

The Def endants

Walter J. (Jay) Hoyt 11l was a partner and operator of nunerous
partnerships related to the breedi ng, ranching, transportation and
sale of cattle. The indictnment stated that Hoyt |ed, controlled, and
supervi sed the overall business activities of what he called the
Hoyt’s Vertically Integrated Cattle Enterprise. The indictnent
charged that Hoyt “organized and | ed the conspiracy.”

Davi d Barnes was a general partner in some of the partnerships
controll ed and operated by Hoyt, the indictnment stated. He al so
managed and supervi sed the Hoyts’ General Partner’'s Ofice and | ater
anot her business called Action Livestock Limted, which offered
cattle and sheep for sale to investors.

April Barnes, David Barnes’ wife, was a general partner in sone
of the partnerships controlled and operated by Hoyt, the indictnent
stated. Wth her husband, she supervised and managed the Cenera
Partner’'s Ofice in Elk G ove, Calif.

David Cross was an enpl oyee and associ ate of sone of the Hoyt
conpani es and partnerships, according to the indictnment. He worked as
a ranch hand, bull manager, and sal esperson for several of the
busi nesses control |l ed by Hoyt, and becanme managi ng general partner of
Hoyt & Sons Certificate Sales Co. The indictnent charged that Cross
was instrunmental in covering up the “severe and pervasive cow
shortage” in the cattle investnment program

Darrel Smith was the managi ng general partner of the |IRA ranch
real estate operations and general partner for the Hoyt & Sons Ranch
Properties | RA partnerships, the indictnment stated.

Phyllis King was the of fice manager for Hoyt's offices,
according to the indictnment. She was not charged with conspiracy or
mai | fraud.

The Charges

Count 1 of the indictnment charged Hoyt, David and April Barnes,
Cross, and Smith with conspiracy to conmit mail fraud, in violation
of 18 USC § 371.



Counts 2 through 32 charged Hoyt, David and April Barnes,
Cross, and Snmith with nail fraud in violation of 18 USC § 1341 and §
2.

Counts 33 through 37 charged Hoyt, Barnes, and King with
bankruptcy fraud in violation of 18 USC § 152 and 18 USC § 2. In
February 1997, creditors filed involuntary bankruptcy petitions
agai nst two Hoyt entities. United States Trustee Jan Ostrovsky of
Seattl e was appointed trustee of these cases and assuned control over
t he business debtors’ assets, income, and operations. The indictnent
al l eged that the defendants continued to sell cattle to new
i nvestors, using new nanmes to conceal their activities and to divert
incone fromthe trustee and creditors. Specifically, Count 33 charged
t hat Hoyt, Barnes, and King know ngly conceal ed property belonging to
t he bankruptcy estate, including over $1.6 mllion in note paynents;
Count 34 charged that Hoyt knowingly testified falsely in the
bankruptcy proceedi ngs under penalty of perjury; Count 35 charged
that King knowingly testified falsely in the bankruptcy proceedi ngs
under penalty of perjury; Count 36 charged that Barnes know ngly
submitted fal se bankruptcy schedul es and docunents; and Count 37
charged that Hoyt know ngly submtted fal se bankruptcy schedul es and
docunent s.

Counts 38 through 54 charged Hoyt, Barnes, and King w th noney
| aundering in violation of 18 USC § 1957 and 8§ 2. The i ndictnent
al | eged that the defendants conceal ed fromthe bankruptcy trustee
nore than $1.6 million in note paynents after the Bankruptcy court
entered orders for relief on June 5, 1997. On 17 different dates,
according to the indictnment, the naned defendants “di d know ngly
engage and attenpt to engage in nonetary transactions, in or
affecting interstate comerce, in crimnally derived property of a
val ue greater than $10,000, by depositing, w thdrawi ng, transferring
or exchangi ng funds, by, through, or to a financial institution, such
property having been derived froma speC|f|ed unl awful activity, that
is mail fraud and bankruptcy fraud.

An indictnment contains only allegations and is not evidence of
guilt. The defendants are presuned i nnocent and are entitled to fair
trials at which the governnment has the burden of proving guilt beyond
a reasonabl e doubt.

The case is being prosecuted by Assistant United States
Attorney Allan Garten and Ronald Scott Taylor, Trial Attorney,
Crimnal Division, Departnment of Justice. The case was referred to
the United States Attorney’s office by United States Trustee Jan
Ost r ovsky.
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